
1



2



3



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

September 15, 2014  
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  
 

The meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Gregory Carper at  4:00 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Kathryn Gualtieri 
Gregory Carper 
Elinor Laiolo 
Julie Wendt 

  
ABSENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair 
  

 STAFF PRESENT: Rob Mullane, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 
Lori Frontella, Acting Deputy City Clerk 

 
II. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 

The Board left to tour the following project site:  DR 14-21 (Goese), Lincoln Street 2 SW of 
Ocean. 

 
The Board returned to City Hall to begin the regular meeting.  Vice Chair Carper reconvened the 
meeting.  Board Members Wendt, Carper, Laiolo, and Gualtieri were noted as present; Chair 
Dyar was noted as absent. 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
IV. APPEARANCES 
 
 There were no appearances. 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 There were no items on the consent agenda. 
 
  

Historic Resources Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 15, 2014 

Page 1 
4



VI. APPLICATIONS 
 

1.  DR 14-21 (Goese) 
Myrna Goese 
Lincoln Street 2 SW of Ocean Ave  
Block: 74, Lot: 9 APN: 010-201-002 

 Consideration of a Design Review (DR 14-21) 
application for alterations to a commercial 
building located in the Central Commercial (CC) 
Zoning District (La Rambla Building) 

Vice Chair Carper recused himself from this item because his law firm represents the property 
owner. 
 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner presented the staff report and summarized the project.   
 
Board Member Laiolo opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Cynthia Spellacy, Applicant, spoke on the project and the need to replace the existing 
tile with the new tile because of its poor condition. 
 
Seeing no more speakers, Board Member Laiolo closed the public hearing. 

 
Board Member Wendt moved to make a determination of consistency with the Secretary of 
Standards with Staff’s Special Conditions #1-5 and amend Special Condition #4 to include “size, 
color, & texture.” Motion seconded by Board Member Gualtieri and carried by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT, LAIOLO, & GUALTIERI  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: DYAR   
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: CARPER 

 
2.  HA 14-01 (Forest Theater) 

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
NE side of Mt. View Ave bet  
Guadalupe and Santa Rita 
Block: 85, Lots: All 
APN: 010-043-008 

 

  
Consideration of a recommendation to add the 
Forest Theater to the City’s Inventory of Historic 
Resources 

Vice Chair Carper returned to the dais. 
 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report and summarized the history of the 
Forest Theater.  
 
Mr. Mullane stated that the Phase I repairs to the Theater will be done to repair what is there 
with the objective of getting the theater operational for next season.  A second phase may have 
more extensive components, and that would be coming back before the Board for review. 
 
Vice Chair Carper opened the public hearing. 
 

Historic Resources Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 15, 2014 

Page 2 
5



Speaker #1: Steven Moorer with Pacific Repertory Theater and the Forest Theater Foundation, 
asked a question on why the history of the Forest Theater was not taken more into 
consideration when determining its historical significant. 
 
Seeing no other speakers, Vice Chair Carper closed the public hearing. 
 
Board Member Gualtieri recommended that the Board and staff pursue designation the Forest 
Theater as a State Historical Landmark.  She noted this involves submitting an application to the 
State Department of Parks and Recreation. 

 
Board Member Gualtieri moved to concur with the staff determination that the Forest Theater 
be added to the City’s historic inventory and that staff amend as necessary the required 
resolution and file that with the County.  Motion seconded by Board Member Wendt and carried 
by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT, CARPER, LAIOLO, & GUALTIERI  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: DYAR   
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

VII. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
VIII.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
IX.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

Mr. Mullane provided an update on recent City Council and Department issues of interest to the 
Commission.   

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned  
 
 

 SIGNED:  
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Greg Carper, Vice Chair 
 

ATTEST: 
 
  
 __________________________________ 
 Rob Mullane, AICP 

Community Planning and Building Director  
 

Historic Resources Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 15, 2014 

Page 3 
6



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

December 15, 2014  
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 4:07 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Gregory Carper 
Elinor Laiolo 
Kathryn Gualtieri 

 

ABSENT:  Julie Wendt 
  

 STAFF PRESENT: Rob Mullane, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 
Ashley Hobson, Contract Planner 
Roxanne Ellis, Historic Resources Board Secretary 
 

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 

The Board left to tour the following project site:  DR 14-35 (Hirst), NW corner of Ocean 
and San Carlos. 
 
The Board returned to City Hall to begin the regular meeting at 4:07 p.m.  Chair Dyar 
reconvened the meeting and called the roll.   

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D. APPEARANCES 
 
 There were no appearances. 
 
E. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of the minutes of October 20, 2014 Historic Resources Board Meeting 
 

Historic Resources Board 
Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2014 

Page 1 
7



Board Member Gualtieri moved to approve the draft minutes from the October 20, 
2014 Historic Resources Board Meeting.  Motion seconded by Board Member Laiolo 
and carried by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: CARPER, LAIOLO, GUALTIERI, & DYAR  
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: WENDT  
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: NONE 

 
F. APPLICATIONS 
 

1.  DR 14-35 (Hirst) 
Mike Hirst 
NW corner of Ocean and San Carlos   
Block: 71, Lot: 2 APN: 010-134-011 

 Consideration of a Design Review (DR 14-35) for 
alterations to a historic building located in the 
Central Commercial (CC) Zoning District  

Rob Mullane, Community Planning and Building Director, introduced Contract Planner, Ashley 
Hobson. 
 
Ashley Hobson, Contract Planner, presented the staff report and summarized the project.   
 
Mr. Mullane made a clarification that the applicant has a preference for Alternative #2 with the 
wood paneling. 
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Mike Hirst, Applicant, provided additional details on the proposed application and 
fielded questions from the Board.  He spoke on the project design and the proposed planters.  

 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 

 
Board Member Gualtieri stated for the record that although she was not in attendance for the 
Tour of Inspection, she did conduct a site visit separately.  The Board noted the importance of 
this building and expressed concerns with some of the proposed alterations to the building 
including the planter boxes and wood paneling above the entry in Alternative #2.  A more 
uniform look to the building was preferred.  Chair Dyar concurred with the concerns regarding 
the wood paneling and the planters on the front (Ocean) elevation, but that planters on the 
west (San Carlos) elevation would not be an issue.  

 
Board Member Gualtieri moved to approve the design with the black awning and trim only, 
and not with planter boxes.  Motion seconded by Board Member Carper and carried by the 
following roll call vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: CARPER, LAIOLO, GUALTIERI, & DYAR  
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: WENDT  

Historic Resources Board 
Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2014 

Page 2 
8



ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: NONE 
 
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Update from the Director: 
 

Mr. Mullane provided an update on recent City Council and Department issues of interest to the 
Board.   

2. Goals and Departmental Work-Plan for 2015  
 

Mr. Mullane presented a summary of the workload of the Community Planning and Building 
Department, the Department’s achievements in 2014, and draft Work-Plan for 2015.  Mr. 
Mullane requested the feedback from the Board on the Department’s Work-Plan as well as the 
City Council’s Key Initiatives for 2015, with any input or recommendations to be forwarded to 
the City Council. 

Chair Dyar offered clarification that the Mid-Century Modern Homes Sub-Committee should be 
corrected to be the Mid-Century Modern Buildings Sub-Committee.  The Board also discussed 
the priority for pursuing State Historical Landmark Status for Forest Theater.  

H.  SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 

Chair Dyar noted that the Mid-Century Modern Buildings Sub-Committee initial meeting will be 
in the next few weeks. 

I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

There were no discussion items. 
 
J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Commissioner Gualtieri noted that if the second City Hall building at Dolores 3 NW of 7th ever 
comes to the Board that this will be an opportunity to restore the lower level to meet the 
building’s original design.  

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 5:57 
p.m. 

 
  

Historic Resources Board 
Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2014 

Page 3 
9



 SIGNED:  

 
 

 
___________________________________ 

 Erik Dyar, Chair  
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Roxanne Ellis 

Acting Secretary  
 

Historic Resources Board 
Meeting Minutes – December 15, 2014 

Page 4 
10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

19

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Secretary Standards



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



Attachment E - Secretary Standards

38

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text



39



40



41



42


	Agenda
	E.1 - HRB Minutes 091514
	E.2 _ HRB Minutes 121514
	F.1 - DR 14-31 Fourtane
	F.2 - DS 14-119 Cusick



